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means the officer or individual so des-
ignated at one of the Regional Exam-
ination Centers, or any person so des-
ignated by the Commandant. 

[USCG–2006–25535, 71 FR 48482, Aug. 21, 2006] 

§ 5.15 Investigating Officer. 
An investigating officer is a Coast 

Guard official designated by the Com-
mandant, a District Commander, or the 
Officer in Charge, Marine Inspection, 
for the purpose of conducting inves-
tigations of marine casualties or mat-
ters pertaining to the conduct of per-
sons applying for or holding merchant 
mariner’s documents, licenses, certifi-
cates or credentials issued by the Coast 
Guard. An Officer in Charge, Marine In-
spection is an investigating officer 
without further designation. 

[USCG–2006–25535, 71 FR 48482, Aug. 21, 2006] 

§ 5.19 Administrative Law Judge. 
(a) An Administrative Law Judge shall 

mean any person designated by the 
Commandant pursuant to the Adminis-
trative Procedure Act (5 U.S.C. 556(b) 
for the purpose of conducting hearings 
arising under 46 U.S.C. 7703 or 7704. 

(b) The Commandant has delegated 
to Administrative Law Judges the au-
thority to admonish, suspend, with or 
without probation, or revoke a creden-
tial or endorsement issued to a person 
by the Coast Guard under any naviga-
tion or shipping law. 

[CGD 82–002, 50 FR 32184, Aug. 9, 1985, as 
amended by USCG-2004–18884, 69 FR 58341, 
Sept. 30, 2004; USCG–2006–24371, 74 FR 11214, 
Mar. 16, 2009] 

§ 5.27 Misconduct. 
Misconduct is human behavior which 

violates some formal, duly established 
rule. Such rules are found in, among 
other places, statutes, regulations, the 
common law, the general maritime 
law, a ship’s regulation or order, or 
shipping articles and similar sources. 
It is an act which is forbidden or a fail-
ure to do that which is required. 

§ 5.29 Negligence. 
Negligence is the commission of an 

act which a reasonable and prudent 
person of the same station, under the 
same circumstances, would not com-
mit, or the failure to perform an act 

which a reasonable and prudent person 
of the same station, under the same 
circumstances, would not fail to per-
form. 

§ 5.31 Incompetence. 
Incompetence is the inability on the 

part of a person to perform required 
duties, whether due to professional de-
ficiencies, physical disability, mental 
incapacity, or any combination there-
of. 

§ 5.33 Violation of law or regulation. 
Where the proceeding is based exclu-

sively on that part of title 46 U.S.C. 
section 7703, which provides as a basis 
for suspension or revocation, a viola-
tion or failure to comply with 46 U.S.C. 
subtitle II, a regulation prescribed 
under that subtitle, or any other law or 
regulation intended to promote marine 
safety or protect navigable waters, the 
complaint must state the specific stat-
ute or regulation by title and section 
number, and the particular manner in 
which it was allegedly violated. 

[CGD 82–002, 50 FR 32184, Aug. 9, 1985, as 
amended by USCG-1998–3472, 64 FR 28075, May 
24, 1999; USCG-2004–18884, 69 FR 58342, Sept. 
30, 2004] 

§ 5.35 Conviction for a dangerous drug 
law violation, use of, or addiction to 
the use of dangerous drugs. 

Where the proceeding is based exclu-
sively on the provisions of title 46, 
U.S.C. 7704, the complaint will allege 
conviction for a dangerous drug law vio-
lation or use of dangerous drugs or addic-
tion to the use of dangerous drugs, de-
pending upon the circumstances and 
will allege jurisdiction by stating the 
elements as required by title 46, U.S.C. 
7704, and the approximate time and 
place of the offense. 

[CGD 82–002, 50 FR 32184, Aug. 9, 1985, as 
amended by USCG-1998–3472, 64 FR 28075, May 
24, 1999] 

§ 5.40 Credential and merchant mar-
iner credential. 

Credential means any or all of the fol-
lowing: 

(1) Merchant mariner’s document. 
(2) Merchant mariner’s license. 
(3) STCW endorsement. 
(4) Certificate of registry. 
(5) Merchant mariner credential. 
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